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IFB NO 23004-FY23-45 

LEESBURG EXECUTIVE AIRPORT 
NORTH APRON PAVING 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

March 23, 2023 
 
ITEM NO. 1: PRE-BID MEETING AGENDA, PRESENTATION, AND SIGN-IN SHEET 
 
Town staff held a pre-bid meeting which included several documents as follows: 
 

• Agenda – see Attachment A 
• Presentation – see Attachment B 
• Sign-in sheet – see Attachment C 

 
ITEM NO. 2:  QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES DURING PRE-BID MEETING 
 
Interested bidders shall be mindful of the following responses to questions asked: 
 

1. Question: Is there an engineer’s estimate cost for this project? 
RESPONSE:  The FY2023 Capital Improvements Program includes a total budget of $936,000 for 
the project, inclusive of project management, design and construction. 
 

2. Question: Any opportunity for time extension?   
RESPONSE:  Delays resulting from the Contractor’s actions, or actions of others within the 
Contractors’ control or influence will not be considered grounds to extend the contract date. In 
the event of an abnormal weather delay for which the Contractor is seeking a time extension, 
the Town will evaluate the delay impact on the project completion.  
 

3. Question: Will drainage work start at the low point? 
RESPONSE:  Yes. 
 

4. Question: Is a DEQ permit required? 
RESPONSE:  No. 
 

5. Question: Will this project be subject to asphalt escalation?   
RESPONSE:  No. 
 

6. Question: Is there a “hold” date?  A critical date?   
RESPONSE:  The Phase 1 work is on the critical path and the total number of days to Substantial 
Completion is 60 calendar days from Notice to Proceed. 
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Bidders must take due notice and be governed accordingly. This addendum must be acknowledged as 
indicated in the Invitation for Bid or your bid may not be considered.  
 
For the Town of Leesburg,  
Cindy Steyer, CPPB, VCO 
Senior Contract Specialist 
Town of Leesburg, Virginia  
Email: CapitalBidQuestions@leesburgva.gov  
Bid Board: http://www.leesburgva.gov/bidboard  
 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 
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PRE-BID MEETING AGENDA 
IFB NO. 23004-FY23-45 

LEESBURG EXECUTIVE AIRPORT 
NORTH APRON PAVING 

Introduction 
• Town Representatives

• Dave Christianson, Deputy Procurement Officer
• Karin Franklin, Senior Engineer
• Walid Quttaineh, Project Manager for Construction & Engineering
• Scott Coffman, Airport Director
• Steve Peterson, Talbert & Bright

• Interested Bidders

Pertinent Bid Information (Procurement/David) 
• All information regarding this project can be found on the Town’s Bid Board:

http://www.leesburgva.gov/bidboard. To receive updates, such as addenda, please register to
receive updates on the Town’s Bid Board

• Up until contract award, all questions must be submitted in writing to:
capitalbidquestions@leesburgva.gov

• Question deadline is 5:00 p.m. ET on Tuesday, March 28, 2023
• Bids are due on Thursday, April 13, 2023 @ 3:00 p.m. ET. (unless modified via addendum)
• Bid Submission:

o Bids shall be submitted electronically via the Commonwealth’s eProcurement website, eVA:
www.eva.virginia.gov

o No late bids will be accepted (including partially uploaded bids)
• Required Bid Response Forms:

o Pages 9-21 of IFB
• Bid Bond:

o An original copy of the bid bond is not required to be submitted to the Town; however, the
Town reserves the right to require any bidder to submit a wet signature, raised seal bid bond
at the Town’s request.

o When the bid security is in the form of a cashier’s check, the original cashier’s check
shall be delivered to the Town within two (2) business days after the bids are due to the
Town.

• Bid Opening:
o At the bid due date/time, a public bid opening will be held via Microsoft Teams

• Insurance
o General Liability $3M
o Auto:  $3M
o Workers’ Compensation per State Law

Scope of Work & Specifications (Capital Projects/Talbert & Bright) 
• The purpose of this IFB is to establish a contract with a qualified contractor to construction services,

including, but not limited to:
o Pavement rehabilitation

 Full Depth reclamation – 16”
 Pavement milling
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o Removal of excess material 
o Miscellaneous demolition 
o Placement of double chip seal 
o Asphalt placement (VDOT state mix) 
o Maintenance of traffic (on airport) 
o Underdrain installation 
o Pavement marking 

• Contract Time:  
o Notice to Proceed: Anticipated for summer 2023. 
o Substantial Completion: 60 calendar days from Notice to Proceed 
o Final Completion: 30 calendar days from Substantial Completion 

• Liquidated Damages:  $2,000.00 per day 
• Project funding – combination of DOAV and Town of Leesburg, VA 
• Earliest start month – July 2023 
• General overview of Table of contents (Contractor is encouraged to read all specifications) 

o Instructions to Bidders & Scope of Work: Pages 22-30 of IFB 
 Advertisement 

o Contract Pay Items of Work: Please refer to the Bid Form and Contract Items of Work 
sections of the IFB 

o Sample agreement including bonds 
o General Conditions: GC1-GC85 
o Project General Provisions: Sections 10, 20 and 40 
o Project Special Provisions: Section PSP 

 Haul road 
 Safety 
 Utility protection 
 Dust control 
 Dewatering 
 Shop drawings 
 Construction Layout 
 Quality control program 

o Technical Specifications: Sections C-102 – VA-SP315  
o Letter Report of Geotechnical Services – Attachment A 
o Bid Plans: Sheets 1-16 

• Construction Plan Overview 
 
Questions/Answers 
 
Site Visit 

• To immediately follow pre-bid meeting. 
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